ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
ADM NI STRATI VE REGULATI ON REVI EW COWM TTEE
March 13, 2007
3:15 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lesil McQiire, Chair

Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary W/ ken

Representative Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Mark Neuman
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEVMBERS ABSENT

Al l menbers present

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve John Coghill

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Conmittee Orientation

Geoduck Regul ati on Report

Proposed regul ati on changes by the Local Boundary Commi ssion
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to consider

W TNESS REGQ STER

TERRY LAUTERBACH

Legi sl ati ve Counsel

D vision of Legal and Research Services
Legi slative Affairs Agency

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented orientation.
PAUL FUHS

PAC Al aska, LLC

Ket chi kan, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed Geoduck Regul ati on Report.

ARR COW TTEE -1- March 13, 2007



JI M SEEB, Chief of Research for Anadronpbus Fisheries

D vi sion of Commercial Fisheries

Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane (ADF&G

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed Geoduck Regul ati on Report.

ARLI SS STURGULEWSK

Former Al aska State Senator

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Spoke in support of Local Boundary
Conmi ssi on regul ati ons.

GLEN MARUNDE
Tok, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Cormment ed on annexati ons.

DARRCL HARGRAVES, Chair
Local Boundary Comm ssion (LBC)
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Described the history of the LBC

DAN BOCKHCORST, St af f

Local Boundary Conmm ssion (LBC)

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned LBC regul ati ons.

LI SA VON BERCGEN
Val dez, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l abl e for questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR LESIL CHAIR MCGQU RE called the Adm nistrative Regulation
Review Conmttee neeting to order at 3:15:29 PM Present at the
call to order were Senators MQ@ire, French, and WIken and
Represent ati ves Hol mes, Seaton, and Neunan.

COWM TTEE ORI ENTATI ON

CHAI R MCGQUI RE expl ained that this conmttee was fornmed to act as
a |liaison between the administration and the legislature on the
issue of regulations. Many tinmes legislative bills generate
regul ations, and occasionally there are disputes about whether
they nmet the intent of the original Ilegislation and this
commttee works with those issues. The |egislature does not have
the power to overturn any regulation that has been presented to
the governor after making its way through the whole process;
however, it can veto a regulation on the grounds that it doesn’'t

ARR COW TTEE - 2- March 13, 2007



conport with legislative intent. Any nenber of the conmittee is
free to make a decision about the commttee’s agenda or discuss
the idea of bringing forward a bill to repeal a regul ation.

3:19:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  NEUMAN asked if it was true that t he
Adm nistrative Regulation Review Commttee could not change
regul ations w thout going through the full |egislative process
but that it can nake recommendations for changing a regulation
to state conmmi ssioners.

CHAIR MCGU RE replied yes. Forner Representative Jeanette Janes
from North Pole passed a bill establishing negotiated
rul emeki ng. This commttee should be aware of it, because it is
a way to bring stakeholders together to arrive at a resolution
that isn’t a surprise and doesn’t invite controversy.

3:21: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that individual |egislators’
staff should be responsible for reviewing all regulations under
their jurisdiction.

CHAIR MCQURE replied that all legislators should review
applicable regulations, but tinme constraints may |limt that.

3:24:56 PM

TERRY LAUTERBACH, Legislative Counsel, Division of Legal and
Research Services, Legislative Affairs Agency (LAA), said that
several years ago the legislature enacted a law attenpting to
enhance discussion before regulations were adopted. Every
| egislator gets a public notice when a regulation process is
beginning, and standing comrittees should also receive an
emai l ed copy of the regulations. The LAA doesn't |ook over the
regulations in terns of policy, but rather the legality of the
proposed regulations. Thus, the standing comrmttees should
exam ne the regulations as well. She added that her review is
confidential, and under statute she isn't allowed to report back
to the standing conmittee on her findings; technically, the
agency coul d consider individual requests for copies of reports.

3:28: 44 PM

CHAIR MCQU RE said that the conmttee should try to work around
that issue for now and nmake sonme suggestions for how the
conmittee can access regulation reports.

ARR COW TTEE - 3- March 13, 2007



MS5. LAUTERBACH added that another thing not in statute is that
there is no way for a mnority |leader to attach priority to a
request for review

3:30:16 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that this issue needs to be fixed so
t hat everyone on the conmttee can see the reports.

MS. LAUTERBACH said that the LAA always reports through the
chair of a conmittee. She continued to explain how a report and
subsequent review would be conducted and the resulting
corrective steps taken if necessary. Reports are not public
record unless submtted by a legislator. The suggestions nade in
the review process don't necessarily need to be taken, but
usually the agencies do conply. There's isn't any followup on
the adopted regulations, but the Departnent of Law is required
to show that it has at |east considered its suggestions.

3:37:30 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked if the commttee will receive copies
of the reports.

MS. LAUTERBACH replied that the reports on statutory authority,
consi stency, and legality are sent to the commttee chair.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if the presentations are, or could
be, given in a summarized formto the conmttee.

MS. LAUTERBACH said reports are usually about two pages.

CHAIR MCGQU RE remarked that the commttee recently shifted
| eadership, and now it can establish its own policies if it
wi shes. To that end, it will set up a practice of forwarding al
reports to all nenbers of the conmttees. A bill should be
crafted to i nprove the guidelines of the commttee permanently.

3:41:21 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for clarification on the procedure
for maintaining confidentiality of reports.

M5. LAUTERBACH replied that the report shouldn’t be discussed in
comm ttee neetings, save executive neetings.

CHAIR MCGQU RE said that she will work on a nethod to relay

opinions in a confidential matter and encouraged any suggestions
regardi ng confidentiality.

ARR COW TTEE -4- March 13, 2007



3:43: 57 PM

M5. LAUTERBACH said that the LAA cannot release any information
regarding its review of a proposed regulation besides what is
provided in this section (which provides for reports). So even
if information is distributed to commttee nenbers, she would
not be able to discuss it.

3:44: 38 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if the nenbers have the ability to
tal k about regulation informati on outside the committee.

M5. LAUTERBACH replied that information on certain topics can be
freely discussed. She explained that there have been 260
proposed sets of regulations. The length varies widely as well
as the frequency; the topics of the regulations were minly
occupational licensing, HES commttee bills, and education
bills. She then listed the different sorts of reports issued and
their historical rate of review She enphasized that cooperation
with the agency is great.

3:49: 07 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked how often the commttee wll neet
out si de of session.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE said she couldn't anticipate that at the nonent,
but that the conmttee was created as a year-round entity. At
the | east, recomrendati ons shoul d be produced year-round.

3:50: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referenced a handout referencing AS
44.62. 030 on consistency between regulation and statute. It says
a regul ation adopted is not valid or effective unless consistent
with the statute and reasonably necessary to carry out the
purpose of the statute. It seens that regulations are valid
unless the legislature passes a bill to overturn them and yet
the Adm nistrative Procedure Act says it’s not valid if it’s not
reasonably necessary to carry out the purpose or unless it’'s
consistent wwth the statute. He asked for enlightennent.

M5. LAUTERBACH responded that she operates under AS 24.21.05. At
| east 80 percent of these regulations have a very broad grant of
statutory authority from the legislature that tells the agency

to adopt regulations to regulate, license certain practitioners,
or establish a grant program The legislature grant doesn't
contain a lot of detail, and when you get to the point of

whether a regulation is reasonably necessary for the purpose of
the statute, it is usually a policy question that she would get

ARR COW TTEE - 5- March 13, 2007



into in her legal review. The “reasonably” standard is there for
chal l enging the regulation in court.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the Administrative Procedures Act
is overseen by the executive branch and if regulation can be set
asi de using the Act.

M5. LAUTERBACH replied that the legislature can anend a |law for
clarification of a regulation if it thinks the agency went an
unr easonabl e route.

3:56: 20 PM
CHAIR MCGUIRE said that the commttee would be hearing a
presentation on geoduck regul ati ons.

GECDUCK REGULATI ON REPORT

3:56: 34 PM

PAUL FUHS, PAC Al aska, said that it's difficult to create rura
opportunities in Alaska, and geoduck farm ng had been a |ong-
standing project. Current regulations aren’'t conpatible wth
maintaining a local industry and the departnent has four
outstanding lawsuits concerning it. The issue is incredibly
conplicated but pending legislation would transfer regulations
from the Departnment of Fish and Gane (ADF&G to the Departnent
of Natural Resources (DNR). The issues of genetics and disease
control are legitimate functions of ADF&G but regul ations would
be best placed under DNR

CHAI R MCQUI RE expl ained that the dispute arose because there is
a no-finfish farmng law, but she opined that shellfish stocks
shoul d be pronot ed.

4:01: 34 PM

JIM SEEB, Chief of Research for Anadronous Fisheries, Division
of Commercial Fisheries, Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane,
said that he would be available for questions and agreed that
sone farm ng el enents are best taken care of by ADF&G

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that he thought there were specific
regul ati ons beyond the statutory framework being discussed, such
as bond posting.

MR FUHS said that he would provide information about the

regul atory packets. He explained how there's a troubl esone tax
on the accidental harvesting of wild geoducks.

ARR COW TTEE - 6- March 13, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked to see the reports.

4. 05: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN remarked that the USDA recognizes farmng
aquaculture and agreed that placing such regul ations under the
authority of the ADF&G seens suitabl e.

MR. FUHS agreed that the classification is commpnsense.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said that in the next neeting the conmttee could
di scuss potential regulatory conflict.

PROPOSED REGULATI ON CHANGES BY THE LOCAL BOUNDARY COWM SSI ON

4:07:18 PM

ARLI SS STURGULEWSKI, forner state Senator, said Article 10,
Section 12, of the State Constitution sets up the Local Boundary
Comm ssion (LBC) and the Board of Regents. She was pleased that
the LBC had come up with these regulations. The |egislature
created the unorgani zed borough in 1961, which is far from what
had been intended by the witers of the constitution. It caused
a lot of problenms and the failure to address this has caused
nore problens. Boroughs have fornmed either as a protection
met hod agai nst other areas coming to tie down the resources from
a particular tax base, but it means a huge area in rural Al aska
has no boundaries for data collection — whether it’s on al coho

or drug abuse or economc developnment. So the LBC has had a
rough time of setting up nodel boundaries because the
| egislature hasn’t fully developed legislative intent. Part of
her appearance is to encourage |ooking at inplenenting what she
sees as a constitutional mandate. She said there is inadequate
nmoney for organi zational pl anning for boroughs, | ack  of
assessnent data, and concern over school district consolidation.
These are big issues the LBC can't handle wthout sone
| egislative direction. She encouraged them to adopt the
commi ssion’s regulations and change them wherever necessary but
also to look at the broader question of how to fully inplenent
the |l ocal government section of the constitution.

4:12:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL agreed that the comm ssion needs
direction. He said the regulations forward are troubling because
many go against existing statute. He thought the legislature
should tell the LBC to withdraw these regulations. The Mdel
Boundary Act is a work that came to Alaska through the
commi ssion, but the process was never publicly vetted, in his
view. So he thought that should be nade nore public.

ARR COW TTEE -7- March 13, 2007



He said that Article 10 and Article 12 of the State Constitution
make the legislature the |aw making authority. This particul ar
set of regulations has 273 citations to the constitution’ s |aw
making authority and assumes it as a grant from the
constitution, not fromthe legislature. That is very troubl esone
and worthy of challenge, he said. Last year he introduced HB 133
regardi ng places where there was going to be a need to conbine
certain areas so that people on both sides of an area would get
a chance to vote. The Comm ssion suggested an aggregate vote and
he said no; they should each have an equal say. Oherw se one
group would always rule another. The bigger question is: should
overarching rules be adopted that say there are other conpelling
state reasons why they should organize?

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he thought they should ask the
Li eutenant Governor to withdraw the regulations that go contrary
to the statute. And he recomended delay in adopting the others
so the legislature can |ook at the specific statutory provisions
t hat have been absolutely overridden in the process stating that
he has |egal opinions that show specific areas where statutory
intent has been changed substantially. He recommended changing
the Boundary Commi ssion from the Ofice of Conmmunity Advocacy
and conbi ne the advocate position to the constitutional |anguage
in Article 10, Section 14. This would mke the LBC a quasi-
judicial group. At least the regulations brought to |ight sone
of the areas that need review. As a legislator he found it hard
enough to figure out the regulations and his synpathies are with
the people of Alaska who have to discern these things and nake
reasoned comment knowing full well that many tines they have to
go to court to protect thenselves fromtheir own governnent.

4:19:53 PM
REPRESENTATIVE NEUVAN said he agreed wth Representative
Coghill”s reconmmendations for a nunber of reasons — one of them

being that the regulations have 110 anendnents and the scope of
the project is very large conpared to the anopunt of tine they
have | ooked at it. He also thought there should be two separate
chances for public review of any changes.

4:21: 50 PM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that he would be submtting his
reconmendati ons to the LBC.

SENATOR W LKEN said that he would be so bold to throw out the

wor k of 160 people over a year because he objected to one or two
items. He asked him to pare down his list of concerns saying

ARR COW TTEE - 8- March 13, 2007



these regulations didn't just fall out of a tree with a few
peopl e getting together to decide how to change people’ s |ives.
He said these regulations may get people closer to realizing
their responsibility rather than avoiding them through the guise
of limted governnent; |ocal governance is best. However, he
added, he woul d be anmenabl e to maki ng changes in a few them

4:25:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that he thought sone of the Boundary
Comm ssions’ actions were unwi se, and sone of the |eadership in
the comm ssion has been [|acking, but he agreed that Al askans
shoul d pay their own way.

4:26: 38 PM

SENATOR W LKEN said that the LBC is one of two constitutionally
mandated commttees. So citing the constitution w thout | ooking
at specifics mght not be quite as onerous as they mght think
because that is where they derive their powers — at a macro
| evel, not a mcro |evel.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said the Commission is cited as a use of
authority to nake law rather than to enforce what has been given
themby law. That is why he feels so strongly about it.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said her intent would be to send a letter to the
commi ssion as chair of the commttee to slow down the process of
approving the changes, because nore deliberation was needed.
Many peopl e across the state have expressed concern.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked Senator WIlken to provide nore
background on the conm ssion’s neetings.

SENATOR W LKEN replied that he had provided themw th a synopsis
of the process that started on January 4, 2006.

CHAIR MCGUIRE said that the difficulty with the commttee is
that it's usually called up in times of crisis; it’s hard to
make changes early on in a regul ation process.

4:31: 47 PM

GLEN MARUNDE, Tok, agreed with Senator Coghill’s remarks. As a
menber of the unorgani zed borough, he was conpl etely overwhel ned
by downl oadi ng 179 pages of regulations — “Wre we in that bad
of shape?” Hardly anyone in the unorgani zed borough has any idea
what is in there. Last session, both Houses sent a strong
nmessage to the LBC to change their attitude. HB 133 was passed
al rost w thout dissent, so he knows the LBC received the

ARR COW TTEE -9- March 13, 2007



nmessage. He said his prepared testinony deals with the nunber of
times the constitution is erroneously cited in the 179 pages of
regul ations. Article 10 deals with local governnments and its
purpose is to provide nmaxi mum | ocal self governnent with m nina
government units and to prevent duplicate taxing jurisdictions.
Those trying to divide the state into 19 organi zed boroughs in
accord with the nodel concept are misinterpreting Section 1 in
an attenpt to force wall-to-wall borough governnent. The nodel
borough plan was adopted by the LBC and not passed by the
| egislature. The plan does not agree with the constitution.
There are nearly twice as nmany cities in the unorgani zed borough
as in the organized ones. Some comunities are organized as
tribal governnents and sonme claim sovereignty. “There is a |ot
of organi zed governnent in the unorganized borough.” He doesn’'t
want people to find thenselves with a new l|layer of governnent
that they do not need or want (an additional taxing authority),
and they would suffer a loss of local control. The nodel plan
guar ant ees the maxi mum duplication of tax |evying jurisdictions.
The framers of the constitution did not provide for regional
governnments intentionally.

4:37:17 PM
DARROL HARGRAVES, Local Boundary Conm ssion, said that the
conmmi ssi on woul d be conducting hearings throughout the week.

CHAIR MCQUI RE said she requested that the public coment period
be extended and he did so, but nore tine nay be needed. There is
a possibility of preserving sone of the commttee's work.

MR. HARGRAVES said the commssion is nanmed in the state
constitution, and its process is extensive. He then listed the
powers and responsibilities of the comm ssion. He assured the
commttee that the conmission appreciates the |egislative
interest in regulation changes, and added that it's difficult to
deal with legislators in direct conflict with one another.

He continued to say that the comm ssion respected |egislative
policy regar di ng school districts in its report and
recomendations, and said that the Alaska Supreme Court has
recogni zed borough governnents as supreme institutions; the
| egislature requires the comm ssion to neet certain standards,
and the regulations nust be in the best interest of the state.
It has been 15 years since the comm ssion’s regulations have
been revised in a conprehensive nmanner. He then |isted the
duties of the conm ssion, and explained its history at |ength.

ARR COW TTEE -10- March 13, 2007



He said that the commssion’s effort to review and revise
regul ati ons has been extensive, and after the comment period is
over the commssion wll spend several days deliberating. He
poi nted out that the actual changes in the regulations are few,
and that any petition brought before the commttee at that tine
woul d be duly consi dered.

4:55:11 PM
CHAIR MCGU RE thanked M. Hargraves for his testinony and for
extendi ng the public coment deadline.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked about the public comrent hearings
and the nunber of people who of fered coments and partici pated.

MR. HARGRAVES said that he couldn't cite the exact nunber, but
that many witten comments had been received. He said few verba
coments had been nade at the neetings.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN said that he thinks there should be at
| east two neetings in each conmunity.

CHAI R MCGUI RE asked for comment on the neeting requirenents.

MR. HARGRAVES said he couldn't explain why it wasn't included in
t he revised regul ati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN called M. Hargraves attention to the
existing statute regarding public comment periods.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said that the revised regul ations appear to be in
direct conflict with current statute.

DAN BOCKHURST, staff to the LBC, said that the conmm ssion
recogni zes the requirenment for two public hearings, and that the
issue wll be resolved. He clarified that mny sites have
participated in comm ssion neetings.

MR. HARGRAVE said that calling attention to errors is part of
the revi ew process.

CHAIR MCGQU RE clarified the dates for future coments and
heari ngs, and asked how people can find out about the hearings.

MR. HARGRAVE sai d 160 peopl e have been inforned already.

MR. BOCKHURST said a notice is published in statew de newspapers
and information is sent to interested parties and | egislators.

ARR COW TTEE -11- March 13, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Hargrave to discuss the process
of separate votes in the annexation process.

MR. BOCKHURST said the conmm ssion included provisions dealing
with this requirenent. There are nethods dealing wth annexation
by election, and there are very few such annexati ons because the
areas in question typically want to connect to a city
government. A popular approach that has been used about 125
times since statehood and is founded in the constitution under
Article 10, Section 12. It requires a nunicipal governnent, the
| egi sl ature, and conmi ssioner to petition the LBC for a boundary
change. The LBC would hold a public hearing on it, and if the
LBC agrees that it neets certain standard it would submt the
recommendation to | egislature. The | egislature would approve it.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said there are two different estimations
of what popular nmeans. One is where the people in the area like
the annexation and one is based on how often the process is
used. He surmsed then that the nodifications nmade in HB 133
only apply to the rare cases of election-type annexations, and
the forced annexations is the popular route of the LBC. *“I’m not
sure that that was the intent of the statute.”

MR. BOCKHURST said he will send the |egal opinion today.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN said he was on the commttee that approved
it, and HB 133 specifically stated that the LBC wll wuse a
majority vote. Both sides have to agree to the annexation, and
“your changes in the regulations ...am | wong in assum ng that
you want to naybe expand that back into having nore tools in
your tool belt in how you can approve an annexation, which would
be contrary to HB 133?”

MR. BOCKHURST said the LBC has drafted proposed regul ati ons that
are consistent HB 133. There has never been an understanding in
the LBC of I|imting the constitutional authority of |ocal
governments to seek |legislative annexations. It is not reflected
in the DOL opinion that he will submt to the commttee.

5:14: 35 PM
LI SA VON BERCEN, Val dez, said the city manager sent information.

MR. MARUNDE said that he's concerned about nodel boroughs, and

that they wll provoke hostile reactions from the public. He
said no one in rural Alaska is famliar with the regulation

ARR COW TTEE -12- March 13, 2007



changes, and the notification time is insufficient. Mny
villages can’'t access a Legislative Information Ofice (LIO.

5:18:24 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for information in the regulations
about deci sional and executive neetings.

MR. HARGRAVES said that the legality of nmaking decisiona
nmeetings into executive neetings has been called into question
and that personally he will vote against that provision.

SENATOR W LKEN conmment ed t hat governnment is only as extensive as
the people want it to be.

5:24:28 PM
CHAI R MCGUI RE asked how the problem of the public hearings can
be sol ved, so they becone as inclusive as possible.

MR. BOCKHURST said that the departnent wusually facilitates
meeting participation through the LIGs, and that he would | ook
into making toll-free calling avail abl e.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE said that the presunption should be that one nust
go to the LIO if possible, and those unable to do so should be
able to access the hearing via a toll-free nunber. The biggest
apparent issue with the commssion is the lack of public trust.

VR. HARGRAVES sai d t hat t he conm Ssi on will t ake t he
reconmendati ons i nto consi derati on.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair McCGuire adjourned the neeting at 5:27:25 PM

ARR COW TTEE -13- March 13, 2007



